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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
EXCHANGE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.
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Financial Highlights
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As at As at 30 June
31 December
2014 2014 2013 2012 2011
R-ZE-NE
+-8 BEAA=1H
=t+-H —T-mE —E-=F —E-CF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TRT FHT TR THT
Results E4 |
- Turnover -E¥8 25,865 3,792 3,066 3,003 3,124
- Loss -B# (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752) (2,565)
- Loss per share -BREB
- basic (in HK cents) —EAR (BL) (6.70) (1.37) 1.77) (1.83) (1.71)
Financial Position BRI
- Non-current assets - ¥RBHEE 3,446 - - 1 2
- Current assets -mEEE 34,758 4,717 6,717 10,328 12,095
- Current liabilities —-mEAE 1,063 1,105 1,050 2,000 1,016
- Equity —¥n 37,141 3,612 5,667 8,329 11,081
Financial Ratios Bt =
- Current assets/Current liabilites —RB&E,/RBHEE 33 4 6 5 12
- Assets/Equity -EE/#n 1.0 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1
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FREHRE
Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Global Strategic Group Limited
IR EE AR QA (formerly named as “DIGITALHONGKONG.
COM #EEE” (“Global Strategic” or “the Company”), we are
pleased to report the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the period ended 31
December 2014.

The new board of directors was completed on board on 16 October
2014 with bringing initiative and passion to the Group, which is
operating in a competitive and vigorous business environment and
economic development. The Group’s turnover was HK$26 million,
compared with HK$3.8 million last year. Loss for the period was
HK$10.6 million, compared with loss of HK$2 million last period.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances and cash
amounting to approximately HK$32 million.

We cannot deny that IT business is declining situation, we also
explore a new revenue stream in commodities trading and plan to
invest in energy resource, but not limit to natural gas. Meanwhile,
in order to strengthen our liquidity and bargaining power, also
effectively utilize for seeking new opportunities, possible projects and
daily operation, placing activities have been proceeded twice in past
few months, net proceeds of HK$44 million and HK$124.8 million
respectively.

These opportunities as well as challenges to the Group on a
continuous basis. Due to the Group’s prudent management style,
and agility in adapting itself in the highly competitive marketplace,
Global Strategic was able to maintain a positive financial position
and ended the period with no bank borrowings. The Group will also
exploit expenses management prudently on daily operation and
suitable investment opportunities as well as expanding the source
of income and generating reliable cash flow. We emphasis that all
sectors are build up by reliable and with capable expertise, and
supported by government policies, including healthcare, innovation
and technology, cultural and creative industries, energy conservation
and green technologies, smart living, and information-based services
for the community and consumers.
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Chairman’s Statement

Welcome New Board Member and Appreciation

The board of directors would like to welcome to Mr. WENG Lin
Lei, Mr. FAN Wei Guo, Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng, Mr. ZHENG Zhu
Peng (non-executive director), Mr. CHIU Wai Piu (independent non-
executive director), Ms. KWAN Sin Yee (independent non-executive
director) and Mr. Leung Oh Man Martin (independent non-executive
director). All of the members are responsible, energetic, wide
network of business connections, and would prove to make an all-
out effort and benefit to the Group and the shareholders’ interest.

At last, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our
directors, management, and staff for their support and dedication
in the past period, especially ex-directors, Prof. Paul KAN Man
Lok, Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling, Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung, Mr. LAl
Yat Kwong, Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming, Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan and Mr.
KONG Siu Chee. The Group shall adhere prudence but enterprising
strategies approach in coming future. We would also like to present
our most sincere appreciation to the shareholders of the Company
and business partners for their ongoing trust and support to the
Group.

WEI Yue Tong
Chairman

16 February 2015
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

With the change of financial year end date from 30 June to 31
December as announced on 22 December 2014, we are pleased
to present the Group’s audited results for the six months ended 31
December 2014.

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
reported substantial increase in its revenue to approximately
HK$25.9 million, of which approximately HK$24.9 million was
generated from the new commodities trading business (i.e.
commenced in December 2014) and the remaining HK$1.0 million
was from the IT business. Turnover of approximately HK$3.8 million
for the year ended 30 June 2014 was wholly contributed by the
IT business. Analysis on the performance of the Group including
revenue and results of commodities trading business and IT business
before allocation of the corporate overheads is set out in note 7
“Turnover and Segment information” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Total operating costs for the period under review were approximately
HK$11.6 million as compared to approximately HK$5.9 million for
the year ended 30 June 2014, of which general and administrative
expenses for the six months ended 31 December 2014 were
approximately HK$4.6 million, while staff costs were approximately
HK$6.9 million. Loss for the six months ended 31 December 2014
was HK$10.6 million while loss of approximately HK$2.1 million
was reported for the year ended 30 June 2014. The increase in
loss was mainly attributable to the increase in staff costs including
directors’ emoluments as a result of the increase in headcounts for
the development of the Group’s commodities trading business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Commodities Trading Business

We have been exploring suitable business opportunities to broaden
the revenue base and to diversify the business scope of the Group.
As announced by the Company on both 7 November 2014 and
22 December 2014, we are pleased to report that the Group
has successfully launched the commodities trading business in
December 2014.

Performance for the commodities trading business was satisfactory
since its commencement in December 2014. It achieved turnover of
HK$24.9 million from trading of copper.

IT Business

Service fee derived from the Group’s enabling solutions and
technical consultation on e-commerce integration and application
customisation (“IT Solution Services”) was the principal source of
income for the IT business. For the six months ended 31 December
2014, lower demand on the Group’s IT Solution Services was
reported and turnover of the IT business was approximately HK$1.0
million.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, for the purpose
of refreshing the Company’s corporate identity, the Company has
changed its name from “DIGITALHONGKONG.COM 5 &EE" to
“Global Strategic Group Limited 3RIRELEE £ B B R A 7).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

We continue our conservative positioning in managing the Group’s
working capital and the Group remained debt-free as at 31
December 2014. As at 31 December 2014 and 30 June 2014, the
Group’s net current assets were approximately HK$33.7 million
and HK$3.6 million respectively with cash on hand and at banks
amounting to approximately HK$32.5 million and HK$2.9 million
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
completed placing (“First Placing”) of 30,000,000 shares of the
Company at a price of HK$1.5 each in order to raise funds for the
development of commodities trading business and for the Group’s
general working capital. The gross and net proceeds from the
First Placing were approximately HK$45 million and HK$44 million
respectively. Upon completion of the First Placing on 13 November
2014, the Company had an aggregate of 180,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each in issue. As discussed in below section “Events after
reporting period”, the Group completed the Second Placing on 30
January 2015 in order to raise additional funds for the Possible
Acquisition (as defined below), the commodities trading business as
well as for the Group’s general working capital.

As always, the Group implements tight control on its credit and
collection policies and the Group has not experienced any significant
bad debts in the past. The Group allows credit period ranging from
30 days to 180 days for its trade customers of IT business. For the
commodities trading business, deposits are usually required and
the remaining balance is usually receivable within 10 days after the
customers have received all documents. There was HK$1.2 million
outstanding trade receivables but no outstanding trade payables
from the commodity trading business as at 31 December 2014.

PROSPECT

The Group is facing severe challenges on its IT business in light of
the contraction in demand on the Group’s IT Solution Services. The
Group is not optimistic that its existing IT business will turnaround in
the coming year. However, the Group may explore other IT business
or investment opportunities which has earning potential. Given the
challenging IT business environment, the Group endeavors to grow
the commodities trading business by expanding its network of
suppliers to ensure a stable supply of quality commodities, including
but not limited to copper and nickel and developing its customer
base with a view to achieve a sustainable long term growth in both
financial and operating performance of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

REBEE_ZE—NWFEF+A=+—HIE
A+ A % E 58 B Bt £30,000,0000% 4 2 &) B
(IR -—REEEIE]) BRIEEBI1.5ET
NEEES BREGBIXEBRIERETE
Er—REBES -F—XREFTHEZHE
IR B R R OFFE 9 R 49 /45,000,000 7T &
44,000,000 T - R -—EBE—NWE+—F+=
HEKE - AREFER AQAFREHA
180,000,000/% B 217 It - B AR E E0.10%
oMM T X [MEMEEE] —Halim &
EER_ZT—AF—A=Zt+HZERERE
EFE UESTIINES  ETBTRESE
(EBERTX) BmEBEHEBARIERAE
Br—REEED-

— BT AEEHHEEERKRRBRER
BREEE MASERFUELEEMEAXN
ER - AEEGETHEAMNBEEBEZER
ZIEEBNTI0RZE180H S mE S EL
ME AERTEERS BEATERER
WA HE+RAARR - R —@4F
TZA=T—"RB ARBSEB RGN
B 5 W FRIE A1,200,0008 0 ETEE 5
FET FRIE M AR AE 1T o

Al =

RN E AR B E AR MR RIREHOF K
AR - NSRBI RO B SRR B S T A AR R PR
AEEL N EFHBEBEEARZETARE
Firg - Rm - AEESSRREMERRK
EGRABRMEBNORER B -ENEM
MRERRERHE AKEHNEREDE
SE® BAHEHMERSS BREFEEN
SmERRNHE SEENERELE T
BREZPER BRAKEEVHRESE
RADHE MERENAIFEER-

11



12

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED B E K EB SR A 7 |

BEENWR DN
Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to review its strategic
directions and operations in order to chart its long term corporate
strategy and growth and to explore other business or investment
opportunities, including the Possible Acquisition as discussed in the
below section “Events after reporting period” with a view to enhance
the Group’s future development.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Shares Subdivision

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement and circular dated
16 December 2014 and 22 December 2014 respectively, the
Company proposed to subdivide each existing issued and unissued
share of the Company (“Share(s)”) of HK$0.1 into 20 subdivided
shares (“Subdivided Share(s)”) of the Company of HK$0.005 each
(the “Share Subdivision”). Upon the effective date of the Share
Subdivision, the authorised share capital of the Company has
become HK$80 million divided into 16,000,000,000 Subdivided
Shares, of which 3,600,000,000 Subdivided Shares are in issue
and fully paid or credited as fully paid. The board lot size of the
Subdivided Shares for trading on the Stock Exchange has changed
from 2,000 Shares to 10,000 Subdivided Shares. The Share
Subdivision was approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 9 January
2015 and became effective on 12 January 2015.

Possible Acquisition

On 16 January 2015, the Company entered into the memorandum
of understanding (the “MOU”") with EE&F /HXARF B AR R A
(Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.) (the “Target”),
WAL REEXRAKFAABBEREM QA (Hubei Tianneng Natural Gas
Utilization Co., Ltd.) (the “Vendor”) and Mr. Xiong Songgan ( A& #2
%), the ultimate controlling shareholder of both the Target and
the Vendor regarding the Company’s intention to (i) acquire certain
equity interests in the Target from the Vendor, being the holder of
80% equity interest in the Target; or (ii) establish a new entity in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with the Target or other PRC
entities nominated by the Target (the “Possible Acquisition”).

The Target is principally engaged in the investments in natural gas
projects in Yichang City, Hubei Province, the PRC and holds certain
natural gas supply projects relating to industrial parks in Yichang
City. Both the Target and the Vendor are companies established in
the PRC with limited liability.
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

Due diligence on the Target is in progress and details on the MOU
and the Possible Acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 January 2015. Further announcement in
respect of the Possible Acquisition will be made by the Company as
and when appropriate.

Second Placing

On 16 January 2015, the Company announced that it entered into
a placing agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, through the placing
agent, on a best effort basis, of up to 360,000,000 new shares of
the Company at a price of HK$0.354 each (the “Second Placing”).
The Second Placing was completed on 30 January 2015 and the
gross proceeds and net proceeds from the Second Placing were
approximately HK$127.4 million and approximately HK$124.8
million respectively. The Board considers that the Second Placing
represents an opportunity to raise additional funds for the Company
for the Possible Acquisition and to further develop its commodities
trading business. Following the effective date of the Share
Subdivision on 12 January 2015 and the completion of the Second
Placing on 30 January 2015, the Company had an aggregate of
3,960,000,000 shares of HK$0.005 each in issue.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Macau Pataca and United States dollars.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 20 staff members.
Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms and
the performance, qualifications and experience of the individual
employee. Remuneration includes monthly salaries, performance-
linked bonuses, retirement benefits schemes and other benefits
such as medical scheme. The Company has established a Human
Resources and Remuneration Committee. In recommending the
remuneration of the directors, the committee will consider factors
such as the Company’s operating results, individual performance,
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WEI Yue Tong

Mr. WEI, aged 54, is the Chairman of the Company. He is the
president of Global News Times (3RER¥TEEF&M) , a print magazine
and an online media platform of global news and advertisements in
the PRC. He is also the chairman of Shenzhen New Front Culture
Communication Company Limited ORI EZXLEEBRAF]) ,
a multi-media marketing and public relations company in Shenzhen,
the PRC. Mr. WEI has experience in the industry of multi-media
and public relations in the PRC as well as business investment and
development. He was appointed as the Chairman and executive
director of the Company on 16 October 2014.

Mr. WENG Lin Lei

Mr. WENG, aged 44, holds a Bachelor Degree of Urban Planning
from Tongji University, the PRC. He is a director of Hotex, a
company engaged in commodity trading. Mr. WENG has experience
in resources trading industry. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 16 October 2014.

Mr. FAN Wei Guo

Mr. FAN, aged 51, has experience in investment management and
resources management. He was an executive director of North
Mining Shares Company Limited (Stock Code: 433), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until his resignation
on 1 March 2013. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 3 October 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng

Mr. JP ZHENG, aged 32, holds a Bachelor Degree of Business
Administration in Accounting from The Open University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree of Laws from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. JP
ZHENG has been an executive director and the chief executive
officer of a PRC based property developing company from 1 April
2012 to October 2014. Prior to that, Mr. JP ZHENG had been the
financial controller of China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited
(Stock Code: 8116, formerly known as China Public Healthcare
(Holding) Limited), a company listed on GEM, for the period from
1 March 2010 to 31 March 2012. Mr. JP ZHENG has auditing
experience in two international accountants firms. He was an
executive director of Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited (Stock
Code: 8010), a company listed on GEM. He is the son of Mr. ZP
ZHENG. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 3 October 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping

Mr. ZP ZHENG, aged 62, graduated from the Party School of the
CPC Guangdong Provincial Committee, the PRC (T EEREZ &
) . He is currently the managing director of a PRC based property
developing and hospitality company, and the vice president of Global
News Times (IREKFTEIEFFL) , a print magazine and an online media
platform of global news and advertisements in the PRC. Mr. ZP
ZHENG has experience in the industry of property development and
media and publication. He is the father of Mr. JP ZHENG. He was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 16 October
2014.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu

Mr. CHIU, aged 67, is an experienced and reputable journalist and
has over 40 years of experience in journalism. He has been a senior
research officer in “One Country Two Systems Research Institute”.
Mr. CHIU has been the founding treasurer and the chairman of the
“Hong Kong Federation of Journalists”. In 2006, he was elected
as the vice secretary — general and treasurer of the “Hong Kong
Federation of Journalists”; and he was also elected as the director-
general in 2009. Mr. CHIU served as an independent non-executive
director of Jiwa Bio-Pharm Holdings Limited (now known as U-Home
Group Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2327) from September 2008 to
September 2013. From September 2004 to November 2011, he
served as an independent non-executive director of Xinhua News
Media Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 309). He is currently an independent
non-executive director of the Gold Tat Group International Limited (a
company listed on GEM, stock code: 8266). He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 16 October
2014.

Ms. KWAN Sin Yee

Ms. KWAN, aged 52, is the executive wealth director of FWD
Life Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited and the director and
chief executive officer of Roots Management Co. Ltd., a executive
wealth management services company in Hong Kong. Ms. KWAN
has experience in insurance industry in both Hong Kong and the
PRC. Ms. KWAN devoted herself in charity and she is the current
committee member and the vice-president of examination committee
of the Hong Kong CU Movement Charity Fund. She was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 16
October 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin

Mr. LEUNG, aged 34, holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce in
Accounting and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada.
Mr. Leung is the deputy general manager of TL Property Consultants
International Ltd. (“TLP”), a consultancy group principally engaged
in project management and consultancy in the real estate sector.
Prior to joining TLP, he had worked at a multinational accounting
and auditing firm for about 8 years. Mr. LEUNG is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 16 October 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man

Ms. LEUNG, is the Financial Controller of the Group. She holds a
Master of Business Administration from University of South Australia.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
respectively. She joined the Group in 2014.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the period from 1 July 2014 to
31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND
FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

With effect from 12 December 2014, the name of the Company was
changed from DIGITALHONGKONG.COM to Global Strategic Group
Limited, and the Chinese name from &5 &% to IRERBIBE £ B G R
NI

Also, during the current period, the financial year end date of the
Group was changed from 30 June to 31 December. The Board
considers the change of financial year end date will make the
financial year end date of the Company consistent with the business
and marketing of the ultimate holding companies, and will enable the
Company to better utilise its resources and facilitate better planning
in order to improve the overall operational efficiency of the ultimate
holding companies.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the period from 1 July 2014 to 31
December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 42.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the period in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the reporting period are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or dividend payment the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends can be distributed out of the profits, capital
reserve, special reserve and share premium of the Company. The
Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2014 amounted to approximately HK$18,715,000 (30
June 2014: nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the period and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive directors:

Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman (appointed on 16 October 2014)
Mr. WENG Lin Lei (appointed on 16 October 2014)
Mr. FAN Wei Guo (appointed on 3 October 2014)
Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng (appointed on 3 October 2014)
Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping (appointed on 16 October 2014)
Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (resigned on 16 October 2014)
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Ms. KWAN Sin Yee (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Mr. KONG Siu Chee (resigned on 16 October 2014)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Mr. WENG Lin Lei, Mr. FAN Wei
Guo, Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng and Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

No director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of up to the date on which he/she shall retire by
rotation in an annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”),
and considers that the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the period from
1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors of the
Company in the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Interest in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company held by the
directors and chief executives of the Company:

Name of director Capacity

BExns 514

Mr. WEI Yue Tong Corporate interest

BRAESLE NGCIL” 32
Mr. WENG Lin Lei Corporate interest
SEZEEAE NCIE

Note: As at 31 December 2014, 111,942,479 shares of the Company
were held by Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited, a
company incorporated in Samoa with limited liability is wholly-
owned by Global Strategic Fund Holdings Limited, which in turn
is owned as to 49% of its issued share capital by Hotex Holdings
Limited and as at 51% of its issued share capital by Liang Tan Yi
Xing International Foundation Company Limited. Hotex Holdings
Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WENG Lin Lei. Liang Tan Yi Xing
International Foundation Company Limited is owned by Mr. WEI
Yue Tong, as to 90% of its issued share capital and by Mr. Zheng
Zhu Ping, as to 10% of its issued share capital.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (continued)

2.

Interests in Associated Corporations of the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in Liang
Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited held by
the directors and chief executives of the Company:

Name of director Capacity

BEEns 514

Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping (Note)
T EAE ()

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors of the Company had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the Directors of the Company
as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2014, the following person (other than the R-Z—MWNH&E+-A=+—H RBEZEEHK
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the HIEEHIFEI36IEHREARALTETFEZERD
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register required to i FTs08% * FTHIA LT (KRR G EH N ITHAAE

be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO: BRIMNRAERR 2R AP B R

Percentage

Number of of the issued

Name of shareholder Capacity shares share capital

HE BT

BRERERE 514 BREEA % 7S b =&

Global Strategic (Holding) Beneficial owner 111,942,479 62.19%
Group Limited (Note)
IRIKEES (RSB BRA A E=mHEEA (P 3E)

Global Strategic Fund Interest in controlled corporation 111,942,479 62.19%
Holdings Limited (Note)
RIKBBESIERER AR 2 ) K B e i (B 3E)

Hotex Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 111,942,479 62.19%
(Note)
BEEBEABAR AR 2 ) K B e i (P 3E)

Liang Tan Yi Xing International Interest in controlled corporation 111,942,479 62.19%
Foundation Company Limited (Note)

e —E2REEEEBERAF 2 ) K B e i (P 3E)

Note: Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited, a company incorporated in  Bf&f : IREREIES (3% ) EEAR AT (A IEE DR
Samoa with limited liability is wholly-owned by Global Strategic Fund ML BERAF) BRFEBESIERE
Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as to 49% of its issued share RARIEERE MRKEBESIERER
capital by Hotex Holdings Limited and as at 51% of its issued share NAHEEEEERAFMME—E2BHKE
capital by Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited. CEARRFDAIHELI9%K51%E EHTR
Hotex Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WENG Lin Lei. Liang RoBEEEERAGHYREEELER
Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited is owned by Mr. E-ME-—EERERSERARBBAE
WEI Yue Tong, as to 90% of its issued share capital and by Mr. ZHENG FHEREMFEREDFIHBI0%RI10%E 5
Zhu Ping, as to 10% of its issued share capital. Accordingly, each TR - AL - IRIBFE S R BB GG - IRIKE
of Global Strategic Fund Holdings Limited, Hotex Holdings Limited BESERBRAF - BEEBBERAFR
and Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited are ME-—E2REESEARAFZERERLR
deemed to be interested in the 111,942,479 shares of the Company ANATE111,942,479/ B 15 HE B i 2 -

under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interest or short B FXHFEBEEIN R-_ZT—ME+ = A

position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company =+—B ®&RAQRFBEELSLPSENE

according to the register required to be kept by the Company under 3361578 T 17 & 2 Z o M aC 8% Fin » I EEAE ]

Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2014. ANTHEB ARG RAD s A8 B IR (D 2 2 sk
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2014 and there
had been no exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants
or similar rights during the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December
2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). No option has been granted by the
Company under the Scheme since its adoption. Particulars of
the Scheme are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
quality personnel and other persons and to provide incentive to
them to contribute to the business and operation of the Group. The
option period shall be determined by its directors which shall not
be more than ten years from the date of grant of the option. The
exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(i) the closing price per share as stated in the Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant of the options which must be a
business day; and (i) the average closing price per share as stated
in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option. No option has
been granted by the Group since the adoption of the scheme.

Other than the share option scheme described above, at no time
during the period was the Company, its holding company, any of
its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate and none of the directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during
the period.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the period, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 100% of the turnover of the Group and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 96.3% of the total
turnover.

The Group has continued to search for suitable suppliers to source
its trading goods. For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December
2014, the largest supplier comprised 100% of the Group’s total
purchases.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the period, none of the directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which competed
or might compete with the business of the Group nor had any other
conflict of interest with the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company is recommended
by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the
Company after considering the factors such as the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to directors

and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wei Yue Tong
CHAIRMAN

16 February 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix
15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) in the period ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms set out in the standard of dealings
contained in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Standard of Dealings”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the Standard of
Dealings during the period ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The composition of the Board during the period was as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman

Mr. WENG Lin Lei

Mr. FAN Wei Guo

Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng

Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok

Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling

Non-executive directors:

Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung

Mr. LAl Yat Kwong

(appointed on 16 October 2014)

(appointed on 16 October 2014)

(appointed on 3 October 2014)

(appointed on 3 October 2014)

(resigned on 16 October 2014)

(resigned on 16 October 2014)

(appointed on 16 October 2014)

(resigned on 16 October 2014)

(resigned on 16 October 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu

Ms. KWAN Sin Yee

Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin

Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming

Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan

Mr. KONG Siu Chee

(appointed on 16 October 2014)

(appointed on 16 October 2014)

(appointed on 16 October 2014)

(resigned on 16 October 2014)

(resigned on 16 October 2014)

(resigned on 16 October 2014)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the period ended 31 December 2014, the Board held 15
meeting to review, among other matters, past financial and operation
performance and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy.

Details of the attendance of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman
Mr. WENG Lin Lei

Mr. FAN Wei Guo (Note)

Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng (Note)
Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok
Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu

Ms. KWAN Sin Yee

Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin

Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming

Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan

Mr. KONG Siu Chee

HITES
BABSRE TE
PRBELE
SERE L (FFE)
RIS e & (P FE)
BRI
Bt

FHITES
BHFEE
BERREE
AN KL

BYFHTES
FHEELE
BER T
ZHXEE
AR AR 22 &
iR E L
LA A

Note: Board meeting held on 16 October 2014 only made by Mr. FAN Wei
Guo and Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng regarding to close of offer and change

in officers issue.

EEg(g)

REBEE-_T—NFE+-_A=+—HILHMH-
EXZeRTI56RGH N (EFEE)ERB
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Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings
held during

the tenure of
his/her office

in the period
HEREBR
EREREST
ESEERARY

5/56
5/56
6/6
6/6
9/9
9/9

5/5
9/9
9/9

5/56
5/5
5/5
6/9
6/9
6/9

i RZTB-—HFTATRNARTZEZES
BERCHBEERSBRBELERERE

MERRMERTEEIEL-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all directors for their continuous professional
development. During the period ended 31 December 2014 and up
to the date of this report, Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Mr. WENG Lin Lei,
Mr. FAN Wei Guo, Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng, Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping,
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu, Ms. KWAN Sin Yee and Mr. LEUNG Oh Man,
Martin engaged in business activities in their respective fields as
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board remain informed and relevant. Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng and Mr.
LEUNG Oh Man, Martin have participated in continuous professional
development programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The directors also participated in
other trainings and professional developments such as attending or
holding seminars, studying reading materials relating to the Group
or its industries and businesses; rules and regulations; business
management; or the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.

CHAIRMAN

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other
directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed for
a term of up to about 3 years ending on the date on which the
directors shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Code and the Articles of Association
of the Company.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The composition of the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) during the period was
as follows:

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu, Chairman (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Ms. KWAN Sin Yee (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Mr. KONG Siu Chee (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (resigned on 16 October 2014)

During the period ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee held 4 meetings. The Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including
that for the executive directors, and the levels of remuneration
paid to executive directors and senior management of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION ANERREMEES ()
COMMITTEE (continued)

Details of the attendance of the Human Resources and ANBRERFGHEE €S2 HFEERFi

Remuneration Committee are as follows: wn:
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
held during
the tenure of
his/her office
in the period
HERE, HR
EREREST
BERRE
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping BT 5 A 3/3
Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung B R 54 1/1
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong BAKXTAE 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHITES
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu, Chairman EEREE TEF 3/3
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee MRt 3/3
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin R EE 3/3
Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming AR BA 22+ 1/1
Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan ﬂ?@g—ﬁf'ﬁi 1/1
Mr. KONG Siu Chee THREEE 11

The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company for #HE-ZT—WNF+-A=+—HILtHH &
the period ended 31 December 2014 is set out in note 8 to the RAIERZESMHE IV NERE B REN
consolidated financial statements. 18 o

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the HE_-_Z—ME&E+-A=+—HI-HH K
Company for the period ended 31 December 2014 is within the REIENZESEEEABMESNFoETE
range of HK$0 to HK$1,000,000. 1,000,000/ JT °
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which
the Company considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company monitors the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and reviews it from time
to time and shall bring to the attention of the Board any significant
issues or recommendations as and when necessary and appropriate.
Any reviews, updates and amendments to the Board Diversity Policy
shall be approved by the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the period was
as follows:

Executive Director:

Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Ms. KWAN Sin Yee (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping (appointed on 16 October 2014)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, one third of the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continuead) REZES (®)

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the REE-ZT—NE+-A=+—HILHERA "
period ended 31 December 2014 and work performed included EEZEZEEEHEBT2REE  HIEREEH
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and the ZEF2 742 - ASMAMNK AR R IE
independence of the independent non-executive Directors of the ¥\fTE&== 2 ME -

Company.

Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee are as IREELZEe ez s HFBERFMNT
follows:

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
held during
the tenure of
his/her office

in the period
HEXRE, R
EREREST
SERH
Executive directors HITES
Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman BRAESLE /7 0/0
Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok 5 S B 2/2
Non-executive directors IHITES
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping B4 A 0/0
Independent non-executive directors BAFHITES
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu EEERLEAE 0/0
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee BERt 0/0
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin 22 S A 0/0
Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming BRI AR 2 & 2/2

Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan AR E L& 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of the Audit Committee during the period was as
follows:

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man,

Martin, Chairman
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee

(appointed on 16 October 2014)
(appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Mr. KONG Siu Chee (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Non-executive director:

Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping (appointed on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (resigned on 16 October 2014)

Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (resigned on 16 October 2014)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set
out in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among
other things, reviewing the Group’s financial information and its
financial reporting, corporate governance and internal control
matters, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit Committee
reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its terms of
reference.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) EREE" (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee EHZE _-_T—NF+_-_A=+—HILFER"
held 2 meetings and work performed included reviewing the Group’s B&ZE @ HRT20 &% LIEREERA
quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its internal control system, %SEBEZZFE ¥FEREFEE HRNIPER
and corporate governance matters including reviewing the Corporate R MO ¥EAEERREBTZR AR

Governance Report for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report. RAIFRANZEEERRS -
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee are as follows: ERLZEgeR LB BRAFMNT
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
held during

the tenure of
his/her office

in the period
HEXE A
ERERET
SBRY
Non-executive directors IHITES

Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping B4 A 1/1
Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung B R S 4 1/1
Mr. LAI Yat Kwong BAEXEE 11

Independent non-executive directors BUFEHITES
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin, Chairman R EE 1/1
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu EEERLEAE 11
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee BERt 1/1
Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming BF AR 22+ 1/1
Mr. Alec HO Yat Wan Al E & 1/1

Mr. KONG Siu Chee THRELE 1/1
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the period ended 31 December 2014, the fee for the Company’s
external auditors for audit services was about HK$600,000 (30
June 2014: HK$526,000) and that for non-audit services mainly
relating to taxation matters was about HK$101,000 (30 June 2014
HK$65,000).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2014, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going-
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s Financial Statements for the period ended 31
December 2014.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system with an
aim to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s
assets in compliance with the provisions of the Code. The purpose is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Group’s business objectives.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external service provider, as its company
secretary until 2 September 2014. The current company secretary
is Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng, an Executive Director of the Company.
He is the primary corporate contact person at the Company and is
responsible for ensuring that the board policy and procedures are
followed and that the Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at
www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or
in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2105,
21st Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Directors, company secretary
or other appropriate members of senior management respond to
enquiries from shareholders promptly. The Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees (or their respective
delegates) and external auditors attend the annual general meeting
and are available to answer questions raised by shareholders.
Shareholders may also access the Company’s corporate website for
the Group’s information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DIGITALHONGKONG.COM)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 83,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the period from
1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014 in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 February 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
—E—NFLA—HBE_ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

1.7.2014 to 1.7.2013 to

31.12.2014 30.6.2014

—E-NF —E—=F

tA—HZE tHA—H=E

—E-mF —E—mF

+=—HB=+—H NA=1H

Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000

B 5 TERT FET

Turnover o 7 25,865 3,792

Cost of sales HE KA (24,887) -

Gross profit E A 978 3,792

Other income HAb g A 26 42

General and administrative expenses —#& R 1T X H (4,559) (2,240)

Marketing and promotion expenses M5 HEE Sz H (92) (210)

Staff costs 1E B A (6,924) (3,439)

Loss before taxation BrEi AT E A (10,571) (2,055)

Taxation 1A 9 - -
Loss and total comprehensive expense 2N HAfE,/4F £ 538 R AN A &)
for the period/year attributable to HEARBEEE I L 425

owners of the Company 10 (10,571) (2,055)

Loss per share — basic FREBE-EXR 11 HK(6.70) centsi#l HK(1.37) centsi il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZE—NFE+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2014

31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-NF —E-MF
+=B=+—H NA=1H
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
P At FE T THET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BREREE 12 1,926 =
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEIERBEEZ
a non-current asset [EERRia 13 1,520 =
3,446 o
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables EWE SN EMmEER 14 2,283 1,857
Bank balances and cash RIT&EBRNIRE 15 32,475 2,860
34,758 4,717
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables JE 1 HL Ath BR 3R 1,063 1,105
Net current assets mEEEFE 33,695 3,612
Net assets BEFE 37,141 3,612
Capital and reserves R RS
Share capital & A 16 18,000 15,000
Reserves [ 19,141 (11,388)
Equity attributable to owners of RAGIEE AEGER
the Company 37,141 3,612

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 83 were F42BZF83EMH ZEAVBEREENRZ
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 Z—HAF - A+ ~BHEF X LRET
February 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: BOUWHATINEEREEE:

WEI YUE TONG ZHENG JIAN PENG
WBAE W
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZF EZF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—E—NFLA—HBE_ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAHEBAER

Share Capital Share Accumulated
capital reserve premium losses Total
B& EARffE R EE RitEE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET ThAT TEL ThR TAR
At 1 July 2013 R-Z—=f+A-F 15,000 7,540 8,461 (25,334) 5,667
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year AEEFERZELLAE - - - (2,055) (2,055)
At 30 June 2014 RZE-WE~A=1H 15,000 7,540 8,461 (27,389) 3,612
Issue of ordinary shares BILER 3,000 - 41,100 - 44,100
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the period ~ AHMEER 2 A LEE - - - (10,571) (10,571)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-mE+-A=+-8 18,000 7,540 49,561 (37,960) 37,141

The capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued by the Company and the fair value
allocated to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries at the date
of acquisition arisen from a group reorganisation in March 2000.

BARBEER _TETF-_AZKBEAN
REIFFBETRARELENBRAR DR EE
FENBERMEEAFEEZIER-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

— HEif  For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

1.7.2014 1.7.2013
to to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-NF —E-=F
tA—HZE +tH—H=E
—EB-NF —ET-mF
+=HB=+—8H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
Operating activities K E
Loss before taxation B # A S 18 (10,571) (2,055)
Adjustments for: PEE -
Depreciation of property, plant Y- -BELEBITE
and equipment 33 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MBEA a2
W - (31)
Operating cash flows before LEESEBHR 2L EREN
movements in working capital (10,538) (2,086)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEWUE 5 B H M BR 3k 2 38 N (426) (1,598)
(Decrease) increase in other payables JERTE MRS 2 CRi2) 38N (42) 55
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBMEZREFEE (11,006) (3,629)
Investing activities REEY
Acquisition of property, plant WEDE BE L&EE
and equipment (1,959) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEIFERBEEDNIES
a non-current asset (1,520) -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—EHE a2
FT 15 3018 - 31
Cash (used in) from investing activities KREEE (FFA)EEE (3,479) 31
Financing activity %ﬁ’ﬁiﬁ@b
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIR G 15 5RIB 44,100 >
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReMREFEZ
cash equivalents o Crid) 558 29,615 (3,598)
Cash and cash equivalents at B/ FzBekReEH
the beginning of the period/year 2,860 6,458
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of B,/ FHZ2EeRESER
the period/year, represented by BRETEH LIRS
bank balances and cash 32,475 2,860
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—E—NFLA—HBE_ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”).
The immediate holding company is Global Strategic (Holding)
Group Limited since 2 September 2014, which is a private
limited company established in Samoa. The Directors of the
Company consider that the ultimate holding companies are
Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Limited and Hotex
Holdings Limited since 2 September 2014, which are private
limited companies established in Hong Kong. Prior to 2
September 2014, the immediate and ultimate holding company
was Champion Technology Holdings Limited, a company
with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Exchange.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporation
Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22.

—REH

ARAEFRESHEBEREHSLIER]
REVEEMA L AEREERAR K
BROCEABRERIMBRAR ([R5
Fri) el MR (TEIZER]) Em-B =%
—MENAZAHR BEEERARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
—E-—NFE+A—HE-_Z—NF+-_A=+—HHIM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the current financial period, the financial year end date
of the Group was changed from 30 June to 31 December
because the Directors of the Company determined to bring
the financial year end date of the Group in line with that of
the ultimate holding companies. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements for the current period cover the six
month period ended 31 December 2014. The corresponding
comparative amounts shown for the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of
cash flows and related notes cover a twelve month period
from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and therefore may not be
comparable with amounts shown for the current period.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied for the first time in the current reporting
period the following amendments to HKFRSs and a new
Interpretation.
Amendments to Investment entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32  Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36  Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 39  Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21 Levies

REMBBEZRUEE

RERMMGRE AEBZMBFREHS
BEHAARNA=THHRRTZ-A=1+—
B ARSARAREZTREEASE ZY
BEEEEHRREERQAZHMEK
FRGEEBE —H-Hit B HE &
EMBREREBRE_T—NF+ A
=t—BEREARE -REBERENRE
fhemlaER KERAEREH R
RAEREMBR LB EMTR 28R
hReEREE _T—=FtA—H=E
—E-MEANA=TAETZEABE-
Futri e g g MR B T AR
HotE -

ERMITREETEEYE
BEER (BRUMBHREE
a1)

AEEREMNBERHEARATIE
BB REEMEFT AR BE-

BEMBREER REEHE
£105% - BB K
HEERFE125
REB G
FE2THRIBFT R

BAE G £ BHERMEERS
FEI2RBEA BAE

ARG ER FeRmEETKE
R ACTIFN SEBE

BEGFEL TETANETER
FIRIBET A EHEHNTE
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—BREF21R

47



48

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEREKEBER A T |

e UBREME (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
—E-—NWFLA—HBHE_ZFT—NF+-A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of these amendments and Interpretation has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current reporting period and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Financial instruments’

Regulatory deferral accounts?

Revenue from contracts
with customers?®
Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®

Disclosure initiative®

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions*

Equity method in separate
financial statements®

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

i Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidated exception®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle*

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle*

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle®

on or after 1 January 2016.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on

the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis and in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Exchange and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical costs is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business and net of discounts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

ME+A—HE2E-_Z—WF&+-A=+—BHRE For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Computer system and equipment 20% — 33"/3%

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESIHE &)

(Continueqd)

Research expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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4. FEFIEHE (&)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired
individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses were recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

T—pFE+=—H=+—HHIM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognised a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire
or, when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognised a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from “loss before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

ME+A—HE2E-_Z—WF&+-A=+—BHRE For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

ME+A—HE2E-_Z—WF&+-A=+—BHRE For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESITEHE (&)

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.
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FOAKERBEBETHRN  CEK
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—E-—NFE+A—HE-_Z—NF+-_A=+—HHIM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T A
Categories of financial instruments SE T AEH
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-NF —E—NEF
+=—HB=+—H NA=1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including ERRERRIE (2E
bank balances and cash) MITHEBRIES) 34,484 4,600
Financial liabilities TRAf
Amortised cost B # R 1,063 1,105

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances.

The Directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.

MERBREEEEREER

FEECZFESRHTARRERKES R
HRR RITERRB S ARES
H A AR - 5% 5 & B T AF SN AARH
HARBE-FHEZSTRIANT ZAR
KR ZERRE 2 BREN X &R
BEBRRERZFRAR  UNEREER
KB RRBUE & -

AEBERHEFIERTEREEAIRT
A R LR o

RRAREFZRBR/ANEEALEZ M RER
WAEKX LI EREGRE D
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—MFE+A—HEZZT—NFE+-A=+—HEME For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management will only advance credit
to customers with good credit history. In addition, the
management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
of future discounted cash flows, to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Credit risk is concentrated to a small number of debtors.
However, the management considers, based on the good
credit history and the long term business relationship with the
debtor, there is no significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks with good reputation in Hong Kong.

EWMIT R (&)

MHEEAREEEREREER (&)

FEmE

RZZE-—NF+_A=+—0 4A5%5H
A A REEITETERAEEEEY
BEEmMEAZ 2 & XEERR T H
FEUBRRERFATENE R E
EZEEBEMES-

RTREAHEERESRBEZEER

EREEMNAEARIFEERLHZE
f5 ETEEHR I EEBIRN|ME
HeaRimd SERNERZ T RS 5E
<E+&§K;KZE\EIEIE._:E/IIL) VAFER BLAS
AT [ IRV R SR E B 1R o Bhut
ARFEFRR AEEZEERRD
RIER A o

FERBREFRIBEFA - AW &
EBEERRENEBAZRIFERRER
,\Tfi‘“AZw,%HE%ﬁ%E@% PR B R
BEXREER

HRRBESTFHIREAEER T ZH
?T’E&mu@ﬁiz %_féf ER@%(°
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ME+XA—-—REZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group’s financial
results and its cash flows. Certain trade receivables and bank
balances of the Group are denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group does not engage in any foreign currency hedging
activities. However, the management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

T—pFE+=—H=+—HHIM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

EWMIT R (&)

MEEAREEEREREEK (&)

s m B

SRR BEARBM T RERER
ERZINEEREGREE - NEEET
FEAE P ERK R IRTT AR A SN 5HE -
REBEYE Y REMINE S HIES -

EEEeTYEREMABIIMNER
B YRR EFEREELHHERNZI
BRER -

RABZRWBERRFAUIINETEZ
EREE CASEEUIIERR -

\

FEEEEBUINESHECEBEER
BEHRRZEEERT

Assets
BE

1.7.2014 1.7.2013
to to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-NF —T—=F
‘t ﬁ —H § ‘f: )E] —HZz
—E-NF —E-F
+=A=+—8H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
United States dollar (“US$”) Emx(IZEmx]) 24,982 54
Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) SRPTEE ([RPIE ) 30 47
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—MFE+A—HEZZT—NFE+-A=+—HEME For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk in US$ and MOP. Under the pegged exchange rate
system, the financial exposure on exchange rate fluctuation
between HK$ and US$, and between HK$ and MOP are
considered insignificant by the directors. The Directors of the
Company consider the Group’s exposure to currency risk is
not significant and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay.

EWMIT R (&)

MHEEAREEEREREER (&)

s mbE (E)

%lﬁiﬁf}g%%‘ZWﬁ%@ BB ETT
RPIE - IRBHBRERKS EFR
EJ/%E‘E‘@%E &L ELR P RS B WO B)
ZHERBEM - KRR EEFRR &K
SEAEzEERRITTEN B
BRAUGREDN -

REEZEE

REEBRBESRAR AEEKRE K
BeFREr kBN eEERR RSN
ZRFE BAKREZEBREEES KK
MREREB 2T E

TREIAEEZERABERTZEH
BRI - R R VIRBA S BRI K
ARFAMZeRABERMARS AR
%O

Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted 31 December
On demand 1 - 3 months cash flows 2014
R-ZZ-mF
AER T+tZA=t+-H
REA 1Z3{8 A Renmes ZIREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TER THERT TER
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-M%
+=ZA=+-H
Other payables EAEMERR - 1,063 1,063 1,063
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €T H (#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

MERREERERBE (&)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEELEE (E)
Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted 30 June
On demand 1 -3 months cash flows 2014
RZZT—MF
ENLEE) ~NA=1+H
=i A 1Z231@ A RemBE ZIEREE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 30 June 2014 R-ZE-MF
~NAZ=Z+H
Other payables JE A E At 3R 1 1,104 1,105 1,105
Fair value ATEE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

No analysis of fair value measurements is presented as the
Group does not have financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold in respect of its commodity trading business newly
commenced during the current period and services rendered
in establishing and providing secure electronic payment
processing platform.

TREERERABBECAFEERER
BREREARTEEREAEE -

EERRRBERAIREZEAM BRSS!
FreREERERMABEREERAR
FEERE -

BARAEETERVIREREELSGS M
BRMEZAFEBEAECEMIA W
WREBWNAFEEFEZDWIT

EXRERIEEH

EES
EEBERANNTHAR 2 ARE 5L
BREEERARK Y RIEHELE

REFFaCRHERE 2B B RER
TR
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—E-NWFLA—HBHE_ZFT—NF+-A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. #¥5ELoEER

(Continued)
Turnover (Continued)

The turnover of the Group comprises the following:

BXE(E)

AEBzE2XBERETIER:

1.7.2014 to 1.7.2013 to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—F-DNF —F—=fF
tB—HZE tR—H=E
—E-NF —E-F
+=A=+-8 ~NA=+A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHE T
Commodity trading EERRES 24,898 -
IT solution services BB R RIRG 967 3,792
25,865 3,792
Segment information PEEHR

The operating segments have been identified on the basis
of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with accounting policies conforming to HKFRSs, that are
regularly reviewed by the executive Directors of the Company,
for the purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance. During the period, the Group
newly commenced the commodity trading business and two
operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are identified as follows:

° Commodity trading — includes income from trading of
copper

° IT solution services - including services rendered in
establishing and providing secure electronic payment
processing platform

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Segment results represent the loss before taxation earned by
each segment, excluding unallocated income and expenses
such as central administration costs and directors’ salaries.
This is the measure reported to the executive Directors of
the Company, the chief operating decision maker, for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

REDBNDENEBRBEVBRELER
ZEBRMER 2 RAEERRE TN
Bl BARBRMITEEEHERN U
AP EDRERLFEERE -BA-
AEEHHAREREZIEDS UREE
BB HmEERERLE D FEHR L
AT RERE LAl BwE D5

s HMmEH-BEFASBEESHZKA

/

o EMBIEERTT ERE — B
UMRHEZEETFNREFFE
R 2 IR %5

RERAIMEDEZ @ HRELEE
S RERMER - D BEEERE D BRR
ZEHATEE (T 8RR RITHMAAR &
EEMEFRNRBARRA) - 5
BRAEMFEDBERARARERT
EX(X22ERRANERZE
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. 2XZEK2EE® &)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) THEER (&)

Information regarding the above segments is reported below:

ERLESEERZHRNOT :

Commodity IT solution
trading services Consolidated
B R
ERES BRAERK &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAT
For the period from 1 July —E-NFEHA—HZE
2014 to 31 December 2014 —E-NF+=A
=+—HHME
TURNOVER EEE
External and total revenue HONHE MBS 24,898 967 25,865
RESULTS ES5
Segment result DEESE (19) (488) (507)
Unallocated expenses, net ROBEFZFRE (10,064)
Loss before taxation B 4 A IS 18 (10,571)
Year ended 30 June 2014 HE_ZT—MNEXA
“t+HILFE
TURNOVER LR
External and total revenue HHNEE U - 3,792 3,792
RESULTS E
Segment result DEEE - (107) (107)
Unallocated expenses, net ROBLH S F (1,948)
Loss before taxation B AT 18 (2,055)
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. EXZENEEH® &)

(Continueqd)
Segment information (Continued) PEER (&)
Commodity IT solution
trading services Unallocated Consolidated
BB
BEmES MRARRE KD B &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET THET FHET
For the period from —E—NWFLA—H
1 July 2014 to ZE_ET—MF
31 December 2014 +—-A=+—H
i
Amounts included in  MAGTEDEEREZ
the measure of BFE:
segment profit or
loss:
Depreciation e - 3 30 33
Year ended 30 June EHZEZZFE—UFNA
2014 =+HILFE
Amounts included in ~ MAFTEDEBTZ 2
the measure of R
segment profit or
loss:
Depreciation e - - - -
No assets and liabilities are included in segment reporting as HRALNBATESREREENERE
they are not regularly reviewed by the executive Directors of the HEITTEAEN WARBRBEMADER

Company. HERe
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—E-NWFLA—HE_ZFT—NF+=-A=+—HEHME For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. XK 2EEHR »)

(Continued)

Geographical information i E & R

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue TR EBEFPFREESBMEHE D
and non-current assets by location of customers and by ZAREBRENIIERBDEES I :

location of assets respectively:

Revenue Non-current assets
W3 ERBEE
1.7.2014 to 1.7.2013 to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014 31.12.2014 30.6.2014
=k —F-=%
tH-HZ +A—-BZE
—E2-mF —F-MF = Lk —T-RF
+=B=+-H ~NA=+H +ZB=+-H NA=TH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET
People’s Republic of China 1 A R 1M E
(the “PRC”), including ([HE]) BEEAER
Hong Kong and Macau B 25,865 3,792 3,446 2

25,865 3,792 3,446 =
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8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8. EE THERKEEM=
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEME
Period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014 —E-NFEtA-—HEZE-NF+Z
B=+—HHH
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
e FERAMEN EHXBEABRRES BABIFHER EsMolE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tax FER TaER FaR TaER
(Note a)
(Mista)
Name of executive directors WIEEHZ
WEI Yue Tong (Note b) RAE (Mio) - 600 1,000 - 1,600
WENG Lin Lei (Note b) HEZ (Mib) - 200 500 - 700
FAN Wei Guo (Note c) EEE (MiEe) - 225 500 - 725
ZHENG Jian Peng (Note ¢) Sl (Mitc) - 375 500 5 880
Paul KAN Man Lok (Note d) 3% (Mizd) - 35 - - 35
Shirley HA Suk Ling (Note d) EMR (fizEd) - 257 128 5 385
Name of non-executive directors FHTESUL
ZHENG Zhu Ping (Note b) BRF (MiFb) 100 100 500 3 703
CHIU Wai Piu (Note b) £512 (Kizb) 20 - - - 20
LEUNG Oh Man, Martin (Note b) 23 (MizEb) 20 - - - 20
KWAN Sin Yee (Note b) BER (Fsb) 20 - - - 20
Leo KAN Kin Leung (Note d) 2R (KiEd) 3 5 - = 8
LAl Yat Kwong (Note d) BA (Mid) 3 5 - - 8
SHAQ Xiang Ming (Note d) B (Md) 9 14 - - 23
Alec HO Yat Wan (Note d) WRE (KiEd) 9 14 - = 23
KONG Siu Chee (Note d) TS (Mid) 9 14 - - 23

193 1,844 3,123 13 5,173
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and decided by the Board of Directors.

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8. EEX THRAKEEMNE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) BEME (&)
Year ended 30 June 2014 HE_Z—NFA=Z1TRALFE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
e FeREMEN ARBEERE RNEFEEER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL F#L FHL F#L FHL
(Note a)
(Hizta)
Name of executive directors WTEEHE
Paul KAN Man Lok (Note d) X% (Md) - 120 - - 120
Shirley HA Suk Ling (Note d) B (Mid) - 955 500 15 1,470
Name of non-executive directors FRTEENS
Leo KAN Kin Leung (Note d) HER (Mzd) 10 18 - - 28
LAI Yat Kwong (Note d) BA¥ (Mid) 10 18 - = 28
Francis Gilbert Knight (Note ) Francis Gilbert Knight (¥ e 15 25 - - 40
SHAO Xiang Ming (Note d) BB (MizEd) 30 50 - - 80
Alec HO Yat Wan (Note d) WRE (Kid) 30 50 - . 80
KONG Siu Chee (Note d TR (Kid) 8 13 . f 2
103 1,249 500 15 1,867
Notes: B 5 -
(a) The performance related incentive payments are discretionary (a) RIERBRERIHZEHEZTIWIE

B

(b)  Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Mr. WENG Lin Lei, Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping, Mr. by BAERLE SREZEXE BRTE
CHIU Wai Piu, Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin and Ms. KWAN Sin EEERAYE RMSCEERBRER
Yee were appointed on 16 October 2014. ZTRZZF—WOF+A+AEZRE-

(¢)  Mr. FAN Wei Guo and Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng were appointed on () BHEBRELEREEBEER=-ZFT—N
3 October 2014. F+HA=ZBEZRT-

(d)  Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok, Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling, Mr. Leo d) MBXEHE BERRZT HBR%
KAN Kin Leung, Mr. LAl Yat Kwong, Ms. SHAO Xiang Ming, Mr. A BENXEA -BBMBAZLT - W(RE
Alec HO Yat Wan and Mr. KONG Siu Chee were resigned on 16 EERIBEXER_T—NFTA
October 2014. TNBEE

(e) Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight deceased on 30 December 2013. (e) Francis Gilbert Knight’/t £ = —=

F+-A=1+HEH-
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—E-—NWFLA—HBHE_ZFT—NF+-A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

During the period, the five highest paid individuals includes
four directors and Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling (30 June 2014:
one director) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis

presented above. Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling resigned on 16

October 2014 as executive director and was employed as an

employee. The total emoluments paid to Ms. Shirley Ha Suk

Ling as an employee during the period and the remaining four

individuals for the year ended 30 June 2014 were as follows:

EE THRARRESME
(#)

BEEME

KRR AERESFALEENEES
MERERZE(ZE-—MOFERA=T
H:—%2E=%) HMeE 223X L
N BRREZTHR-ZT—NF+ A+
ARERATES XBEAREE-HAX
NFERRREIZEEMEARBE -
Z-MFAA=THIEFEXMNTFHH
MEALTZMEEEFBOT:

1.7.2014 1.7.2013
to to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-NF —T—=
tBA—HZE +tH—H=E
—E—-mF —E-mF
+=B=+—H ~A=1+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Salaries and other benefits e MEMmEF 313 1,345
Retirement benefits R ARAE T ET B B30
scheme contributions 4 48
317 1,393

Number of employees

EE A
1.7.2014 1.7.2013
to to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-mF —E-=F
tA—HBZE tH—H=E
—E—mF —E—F
+=HB=+-8 NA=+H

The emoluments were within BEZME&N T THEHE:
the following band:

Nil — HK$1,000,000 # — 1,000,000/ 7T 1 4
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—E-NFELA—HE-Z—WNF+_A=+—HHEME For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

9. TAXATION 9.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group incurred a tax
loss.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for prior year since the Group
incurred a tax loss and the assessable profit in prior year was
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for certain
subsidiaries.

The taxation for the period/year can be reconciled to the loss
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Bi I8

HRAEESSHEABE Ritza iy
B E W BIEHERME BN S HEESE -

AR AEER EFEHRESHEREE " B
FEE R RIS T8 R
EZHEEEE2EN BLEREM5
HwEWES EFEELTRAEEFER
B

AER/FEZRARENEARER
Higpemias R 2 BEHKROT

1.7.2014 to 1.7.2013 to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—F-mF —E=F
tH—BZE +tHA—B=E
—E—mF —ET—YF
+=—HA=+—H ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
Loss before taxation B 35 AT &5 18 (10,571) (2,055)
Tax credit at Hong Kong Profits Tax BEANFHE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) T —=%:16.5%)
AEZBEER (1,744) (339)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ NEFRER R H 2
for tax purposes HEge 177 45
Tax effect of income not taxable for RMPAZ T ETE
tax purposes (24) (83)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMIBEE ZHIETE 1,591 524
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B A@ERER 2 R IBEEE
recognised - (147)

Taxation for the period/year RNERREFE 2 BB
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10. LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR

11.

—E+-A—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3R

E-FT—NFE+-A=+—BHME For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

10. 728/ FEEE

1.7.2014 to 1.7.2013 to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-WF —E—=F
tA—HZ tR—HZE
—E-NF —mF
+=A=+—8H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT
Loss for the period/year has been RERRFEBIEC R
arrived at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration % 856 B < 600 526
Depreciation of property, plant and WME- -BERERBINE
equipment 33 S
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEEMEIEERES S
rented premises 219 98
Research expenditures, including staff  #5c X - BiEEE
costs of HK$610,000 X Z5610,0007% 7T
(30 June 2014: HK$1,150,000) (Z2—mEA=+8:
1,150,000/ 7T ) 625 1,181
and after crediting: KEFTA:
Gain on disposal of an associate HE— g E Qe 2 e - 31
LOSS PER SHARE 11. BREE

The calculation of the loss per share is based on the loss
for the period/year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$10,571,000 (80 June 2014: HK$2,055,000) and on the
weighted average number of 157,869,000 (30 June 2014:
150,000,000) shares in issue throughout the period/year.

No diluted loss per share is presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares in issue during the period ended 31
December 2014 and the year ended 30 June 2014.

FRBETIRIEBEARNAREE ABERS
M, FE B B#%10,571,0008 7T (=
T—MFNA=+H:2,055000%7T)
NMEFEREEITHRD157,869,000( =
Z—MHEF XA =-+H:150,000,000) %

Z I EMmEtH -
HREBEE-_FT-—HF+_A=1+—H81t

HHF'EJ&EG:_ =
EWEBBTEEE S LR
2B ETRERE -

@iﬂﬂ + 84
BAY - AL R
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3k

12. WE - -BERRE

Computer Furniture
system and and Leasehold Motor
equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
ERARRRE BRREE HELE "E Bg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAR TAR ThER TAR
COST KA
At 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014 RZE-ZFtA-BR
“E-WEARA=TH 762 8 - - 770
Additions RE 325 107 720 807 1,959
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-ME+=A=1+-8 1,087 115 720 807 2,729
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014 RZZE-ZF+tA-BR
ZZ-mERA=TH 762 8 - - 770
Provided for the period BN 6 2 12 13 33
At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME+-A=1+-A 768 10 12 13 803
CARRYING VALUES HEEE
At 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+-A=1+-H 319 105 708 794 1,926

At 30 June 2014

RZZB-mFXA=1H

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A
NON-CURRENT ASSET

The deposit was paid to acquire a license for Guangzhou/
Hong Kong cross-boundary private car. The amount will be
fully refunded to the Group if the application of license is not

successful.

13. WIBERBEEZENRS

HZREDHRBA—WMEMN BEER
FLZK B8 27 FE R T S A o ikl B 55 R R N B
W RIARRESEBRETALEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
—MFE+A—HEZZT—NFE+-A=+—HEME For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

14. B E 5 Kk H iR

31.12.2014 30.6.2014

—E-NF —E-F

+=HB=+—8H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHE T

Trade receivables (Note) FEWE SR (M) 1,502 1,705
Other receivables JE WO HL A BR 3K 781 152
2,283 1,857

Note:

The Group allows credit period ranging from 30 days to 180 days
for its trade customers of IT business depending on their credit
worthiness, nature of services and conditions of the market. For the
commodities trading business, deposits are usually required and the
remaining balance is usually receivable approximately within 10 days
after the customers have received all documents. The aging analysis

o3 :

AEBERBEEEMBBREBEI TP ZEE
EE REMERMHERME TN TFI00H
Z180RZEEH -HELESEBME @
%ﬁi%ﬁﬁé BERENREFPWEMAE
S EHT B RUE - R IRE B AR IR E
BEAM (R EERANEE) CEKE S

of trade receivables based on the invoice date which approximate BRFERE DT
the revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-ImF —ET-EF
+=B=+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 1,502 930
61 — 120 days 61 - 120H - 775
1,502 1,705

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with
reference to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and
sales management team considers trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as
continuous repayments have been received.

ET%%WETEJ%&E}EW’$%IH7HI%&%
EERERETHBEETPZEEE
R WEEEFZEER TP ZEEH
He2TREREREMEMETE
Ble REEMBMHEEEEKRR

F 7 BE 15 48 W EUE 3R - P A R B A K
RABEZEKE S REHARIFERR
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15.

16.

—mAE+A—HBZE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances carried prevailing market interest at an
average rate of 0.026% (30 June 2014: 0.017%) per annum.

SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares

| ANNUAL REPORT 2014 % &

—ZT—mFE+=-H=+—HHIM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

15. IRITE&E BB R R S
RITEBRZBIIMSFENE 2 Y
RO020EB (T —WFENA=+H:
0.017E )&t B °

16. R A

Share capital

RAEE S
31.12.2014 30.6.2014 31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-mE —E-mE “E-DmE —E-mF
+=A=t+-H ~A=tHE +=ZA=+-H ~NAZTH
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T i T TER AT
Authorised: AT
800,000,000 800,000,000/
ordinary shares of BREE0I0BTZ
HK$0.10 each L@k 800,000 800,000 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER:
At beginning of year REF] 150,000 150,000 15,000 15,000
Issue of ordinary shares T EER
(Note) (H&E) 30,000 - 3,000 -
At end of period/year R/ EXR 180,000 150,000 18,000 15,000

Note: During the period, an aggregate of 30,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, have been placed to independent third parties
at the price of HK$1.50 per share. The shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects among themselves and with the existing
issued shares. The directors intend to use the net proceeds to
fund a possible acquisition of natural gas projects in the PRC,
the Group’s commodity trading business, and the remaining
amount as general working capital.

Effective from 12 January 2015, the ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.1 each were subdivided into 20 ordinary
shares of HK$0.005 each (see note 24 for details).

MizE: HI - AN &4 $£30,000,0000% & i@
BRERETFBIE=) EERAEEKR
1,508 Lo BT 2B RERER
BIIRMNESTEAZHERSHA-E
FEIG TR I FRE AR AT s U g
B RAAREE AEBEZERES
¥ RBBEAE-REEES-

H-_E—AF—A+=-HiE xQF
fEEEOANE T2 Lﬂﬂﬁzﬁﬁzoﬂﬁt
f&TEI{E0.005/8 o2 EimMk (718 ALK
24) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
—E-NWFLA—HBHE_ZFT—NF+-A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

17. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to
attract and to retain quality personnel and other persons and to
provide them with incentive to contribute to the business and
operation of the Group. Under the Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any eligible persons of the Group, including
() any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv)
any person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contribute or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Options granted are exercisable for a period of up to
ten years from the date of grant of the option as decided by the
board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of share; (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day and (iii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which the options may be granted under the
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No
option under the Scheme has been granted by the Company
since its adoption.

17. BB R EFTE

RZB——F+—A=+H xraE
Mm—IERERESE ([5H8]) - 5T8l 2
ENERRAREBEEFAEREMA
TOEUAREEERAER ZEBRE
BIEHER -REBFE - EFATRLE
BroARNEEBATHEBRE 5
BIEOAAT KB A RSB AL
FRES- - EESERM: HK(i)ARQF M
BARSKHMBALIHNEMNES EEK
BERRE2EEEHRNEMNE2ERET:
(AR F B A RSB ATHNE
MEEF EEIBHNEREBNAF:
HVESTHRERAEAAEERM
R EEAEEET IR S B
HEEREE XBAEEFMERD
FHATHER FREFRBERARAZ
- FIiRE s BREATREESME
E2HE (HERERE AR RS
TE)RITRE -

RIFFTEI R 2 BARETTEE (ATIRZA
ZIFTAA T AFE ) B)RHEE : ()X
BEFEBH(NEREER)ERS
FT 3 B R85 AT R 2 2 AR U (8 R (i) B
ERIEBREAPIAMAEXEERS
FTEgARERAFZEBRZHFHET
B U=ZFZ2E=EAE - BIETEIT]
RO CERERMS R ZBRMDEE LRT
FEEAARRNF A ERR BT
BRZAR10% o AT - EATEFT B ARITERE
RRiEm Al FE T2 RO B ERAITE
M AR B TEEEITIRA Z30% ° 78
REARAIREBSBET - REM12
18 A BARE A M) 4 ] 88 — AR AR H BB AR
TSR ZBRMNEE THBARARR
Z128 A M A&k — B TRE TR
MEE Z1% o ANA 7] B IRMAET S| AR
RIB R G I L BB AR 4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18.

19.

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$35,115,000 (30 June 2014:
HK$24,478,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during
the period/year:

18.

19.

—E+A—BE-_ZT—WNE+_-H=+—HEHEM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

RERIELERE

RRERTER NEERSHA BB
B 1849 /535,115,000 7T ( —ZE — 4
NAZ=+H 24,478,000/ 7T ) « A {iK
%ﬁﬂiﬂmﬁu FR A S B F8OBI 2R 2R 2 i
ER MU EBRRAECEHBEEE - HE
REBEITERELE-

REHERE
REBEREEA

#,/FRREEERAEE N REREN
%

1.7.2014 1.7.2013

to to

31.12.2014 30.6.2014

—E-NF —E—=F

tA—HZE tA—H=

—E—mF —E—F

+=A=+-H ~A=+8

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Premises LES 219 98

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments REREBTEER  RETTRELCER

for future minimum lease payments in rented premises under E AEBHEEMEZARARKEHER
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: FOREFIHR T

31.12.2014 30.6.2014

—E-MF —ZT-mE

+=—A=+—H NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHET

Within one year 1FE R 2,022 50

In the second to fifth year inclusive FE2EESFN
(BEERMF) 2,253 -

4,275 50
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20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 20. EARAIE
1.7.2014 1.7.2013
to to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E-mF —E—=F
tB—HZE tR—HZE
—E-NF —ET-mEF
+=—HA=+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the BEWE BERRHE
acquisition of property, plant and AR EEAE
equipment, development of systems EEERRITOEAAL
and networks authorised but not
contracted for 500 500

21.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Employees employed by the Group’s operations in Macau are
members of government-managed retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operations are
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost for the MPF scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

During the period, retirement benefits scheme contributions
paid amounted to approximately HK$59,000 (30 June 2014:
HK$63,000).

21.

iR k48 A 5 &

AEBRRFIRE 2 EBMBFERES
R %2 HF 2 BRI B B AR AR AE A 5t &)
Z KB - RPIETFAIR A RR KR MG
B MEBRMHK BURZEANEE -
ARG B R PIBUT B 2 R RAE FE 8
ZME—FBBRBEEELPIE R

AEBLHENEEZMBEAERERS
e sltERES ([REE]) 5821
Eat Bl RIRBAIRA - BN A K E iR 58
REFaRAMEELRZHR ER
mefEmhEMEEKERANEK-

HA-BENEARBRAEEZID A
59,000 T (ZE—MWENA=1+8H":
63,000/ 7T ) °
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—E—NFE+A—HE-_Z—NF+-_A=+—HEHIM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

22. SUBSIDIARIES 22, i 2 =

AAREHBAAR-E—WE+=4
S+—BR-T-MEAA=+AZEH

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2014
and 30 June 2014 are as follows:

BT
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
WEARERE A AR L 3t B ERTRAZRE AEBEGER TEER
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
“E-lmF &
t=A=+-B  XA=+H
Bright Able Century Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Inactive and not yet
commence in business
LHRELEBRAA KBRS 1% VEEBRWARRES
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
‘RS 1%L REZK
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100%  Provision of an e-commerce
platform for payment
process for global business
EBRAHES 1T BERAAR/EFHENR
Fa
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of an e-commerce
platform and evaluation of
e-commerce opportunities
B 2B RESrBETaRiThET
HER
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of an e-commerce
platform for payment
process for retail customers
and e-malls based in Hong
Kong .
YEEEARAERAR B 2B REBRIZERFRETHS
RESFHBANTA
Global Billion Access British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% - Investment holding
Investments Limited )
RIERRERRAR AERTES E REZK
Honest (Macao Commercial Macau MOP100,000 100% 100%  Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited services, data processing
N and selling activities
ZRORMBEBERB)ERAF R 100,000:27 % %%%ﬁ%ﬁ~%ﬁﬁﬁ&%%
i
Hong Kong Global Billion Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive and not yet
Access Investments Limited commence in business
BERERREBRAA Bt 18T PEEBREARRER
Pickworth Limited Samoa Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EE D 1% REZKR
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Commaodity trading
LERRBRARA 5 18T HmE S
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at A HAfE e A I SR F N B - &

the end of the year or at any time during the period.

B A RMETAIREEZBEBES -
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—E-NWFLA—HBHE_ZFT—NF+-A=+—HEHM For the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

23. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 23. KD TR 2B ER
COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the ARBRBEHTER 2 CHBERE

reporting period includes: &
1.7.2014 1.7.2013
to to
31.12.2014 30.6.2014
—E—-mF —E—=F
tA—HZE +tA—HB=
—E-NF —T—mF
+=HA=+—H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment LN 942 =
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRRIZIEE - =
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUH B A R 2 5RIA 30,665 3,031
Other receivables JE U B Ath BR 3R 678 105
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR LIRS 6,562 1,074
Total assets BERHAE 38,847 4,210
Other payables FEA E Ath BR X 924 694
Amount due to subsidiaries JEAST B B A Bl 2 FE 1,208 1,023
Total liabilities FEN=R 2,132 1,717
Net assets EBEFE 36,715 2,493
Capital and reserves % 7 % 7
Share capital &N 18,000 15,000
Reserves (G 18,715 (12,507)
Equity attributable to owners of KRGS ANEGEZ
the Company 36,715 2,493
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23.

24,

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (continuea)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current period and
the prior year are as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3k

23. KD FRIZHMBER (#)

GES
ARANEBRAE L FE L REEDWT

Capital Special Share  Accumulated
reserve reserve premium losses Total
BRRE Kl E RN EE ZiER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET TRT
At 1 July 2013 RZE-=F+H—H 7,640 1,971 8,461 (27,405) (9,333)
Total comprehensive expense AFERETLABE
for the year - - = (3,174) (3,174)
At 30 June 2014 RZE-mFESA=+H 7,640 1,971 8,461 (30.579) (12,507)
Issue of ordinary shares BIIERK - - 41,100 - 41,100
Total comprehensive expense
for the period AHBEETLAE - - - (9,878) (9,878)
At 31 December 2014 RZB-NFE+=A=1+—-H 7,640 1,971 49,561 (40,457) 18,715

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 January 2015, subdivision of the shares of the Company
of each then issued and unissued share of HK$0.1 into 20
subdivided shares of HK$0.005 each, has become effective,
upon which the Company has an authorized share capital
of HK$80,000,000 divided into 16,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.005 each, of which 3,600,000,000 shares have been
issued and are fully-paid or credited as fully-paid.

On 16 January 2015, the Company entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding with Mr. Xiong Songgan, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of Hubei Tianneng Natural
Gas Utilization Co., Ltd. and Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas
Utilization Co., Ltd., both are independent third parties, in
relation to the possible acquisition of natural gas projects in
Yichang City, Hubei Province, the PRC.

On 16 January 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place up to 360,000,000
new shares to independent third parties at a price of HK$0.354
per share. On 30 January 2015, the placing has been
completed. The gross proceeds and net proceeds arising
from the placing are approximately HK$127,400,000 and
HK$124,800,000 respectively. The board of directors consider
that the placing represents an opportunity to raise additional
funds for the Company for the possible acquisition and to
further develop its commodity trading business, as well as
broadening the shareholder and capital base of the Company.

24. FEHREE

RZZE—RAF—A+=ZH XRAEK
FREEOAB T ZEEITRREITR
7 B 4 220X & ik E {H0.0057% 7T 2
KARMARR D BB ADB 2 EATERAN A
80,000,000/% T ' % £&16,000,000,000
A% & P& E {H0.0058 L Z i 15 » EH
3,600,000,000% ft 17 & B 21T L # R
FABRI BT -

R-E—RF—A+/RH AARHAE
Mgt (RRILRERRRFBAER
BEERAREERTHMRARINAERA
Al (MELURBIUE=T) ZREER
PR ) BT ARS8 WA BRI A REN
BHBEBItEEEMRARIER -

RZE—RAF—H+T/"H XRFHE
EREBIIVESHE B AAFH
EHERBILNER0.354B T2 BIREE
Bx %360,000,0000% ¥ i% 1D T B ILF =
F-RZE—RAF—A=+H BRES
HERK - MEFELMESRELER
BT 15 Z I8 5 58 9 Bl £ /&127,400,000/%8
JL X 124,800,000 L~ EE &R A5 i
EEEAANRRABSERINE S IANEITE
EREFERE-—SEENREDES
2R WERARERAQRACRRERE
A o
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Year ended 30 June

1.7.2014
to BEANAZTRHLEE
31.12.2014 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-lmE
tA-HE
—E-mf
+=A=+-H a3 —T-=% —T--F 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL THEL THEL FTAET
RESULTS ES |
Turnover HER 25,865 3,792 3,066 3,003 3,124
Cost of sales HEMK (24,887) - = = =
Gross profit E=H 978 3,792 3,066 3,003 3,124
Other income Hel A 26 42 1 5 9
General and administrative —BRITEZ HARYTE
expenses and depreciation (4,559) (2,240) (2,293) (2,234) (2,296)
Marketing and promotion expenses mEEESI L (92) 210) (228) (249) (303)
Staff costs BEMA (6,924) (3,439 (3,208) (3,277) (3,099
Loss for the period/year AHH/ FEFE (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752) (2,565)
At At 30 June
31 December RAB=1H
2014 2014 2013 2012 2011
R-E-mF
T=ZA=+-H —T-lmF —Z-=F 2= 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT THT AT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,446 - - 1 2
Current assets MEBEE 34,758 4,717 6,717 10,328 12,095
Current liabilities TEaE (1,063) (1,105) (1,050) (2,000) (1,016)
37,141 3,612 5,667 8,329 11,081
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